CARE ENGLAND

Representing independent care providers

Care England
HR Group Minutes
16 November 2023 - 13:00-14:00

Welcome & Introductions

George Appleton (GA), Head of Policy at Care England - welcomed attendees to the meeting.
Supporting this meeting:
e loan Bishop (IB) - Policy, Parliamentary and Projects Officer at Care England

e Victoria Hemmingway (VH) — Head of Public Affairs and Policy, Hft
e Hannah Bollard (HB) - Associate at Anthony Collins Solicitors

GA went through the status of actions from the previous meeting.

Sector Pulse Check 2023

VH outlined the history of the Sector Pulse Check report, now in its eighth year, which provides an
annual snapshot of the financial health and workforce of the adult social care sector.

International recruitment

IB noted that care providers for people with learning disabilities and/or autistic people and smaller
care providing organisations appear to be remaining more reliant on domestic recruitment, as
opposed to international recruitment. Enquired about whether there are any specific barriers to
international recruitment for those types of organisations.

Member noted that the Government cap on the number of people they can recruit from overseas
has been a challenge.

Member noted delays in getting a certificate of sponsorship — it takes weeks to get them approved
and for the individual to get a response to their VISA application.

Member noted that, in relation to residential care as a medium-sized provider, the recruitment
portal and help centre are difficult to use. The help centre has limited opening hours and the
terminology on the VISA sponsorship manager portal is not easy to use. Supporting employees with
accommodation is very costly, as are VISA costs. The member has not received any support through
the international recruitment fund.

Member noted that they are struggling with undefined costs. ‘Rogue’ providers are recruiting
individuals from overseas and then telling them there is no work for them. Too much information is
requested about prospective employees that the provider does not have access to until the
employee is through the door.

Recent Government initiatives

2 Devonshire Square | London EC2M 4UJ | 08450 577 677 www.careengland.org.uk | Registered in England No. 2082270 Registered Charity No. 296103


http://www.careengland.org.uk/

VH noted that many providers have reported that recent Government funding initiatives, including
the International Recruitment Fund and Market Sustainability and Improvement Fund, have had
limited impact on the financial sustainability of their organisation. Enquired about members’
experience with recent Government funds.

Member noted that they have accessed nothing in any of the three local authorities they operate in;
their last support payments were COVID-related.

Member noted that they have not had anything directly. Through the international recruitment fund
they were able to access an assessment and a driving lesson for overseas.

GA enquired whether any members had had a positive experience with any of the funds.
Member noted their council had reached out to them regarding the international recruitment fund,
they submitted an application, but that application was rejected. It is not clear why that application

was rejected, but the communication from the local Council was good.

Recommendations for Government

IB noted that the Sector Pulse Check 2023 report will include a series of recommendations to
Government and other stakeholders.

Members recommended policies including:

e Increase local authority fee rates to allow providers to maintain pay at London Living Wage
and maintain differentials.

o Reforming Level 2 and Level 3 care courses to be shorter, more modular and linked to digital
skills

e Introduce a buddy system in recruitment

e Better quality, face-to-face training, particularly related to dementia

e Better consistency with onboarding

e Professional register for care workers

e Values based recruitment

Made with Care

IB noted that the next phase of the Made with Care recruitment campaign is live, with new
campaign resources now ready to download and use. Members can add their logo and details to
new digital assets — simply visit the Campaign Resource Centre or campaign page to get started.

IB noted a Skills for Care webinar available to download and watch, providing useful background on
the Made With Care campaign, how to get involved with it and how it can support your recruitment.

Volunteer pre-employment checks consultation

IB noted that Care England is looking to respond to a Government consultation on the proposal to
remove the statutory requirement for a full employment history when appointing health and care
volunteers. The Government’s view is that removing the requirement would improve the application
experience for volunteers, increase the diversity of applicants and reduce the administrative burden
for employers.

2 Devonshire Square | London EC2M 4UJ | 08450 577 677 www.careengland.org.uk | Registered in England No. 2082270 Registered Charity No. 296103


http://www.careengland.org.uk/
https://www.adultsocialcare.co.uk/recruit.aspx
https://campaignresources.dhsc.gov.uk/
https://vimeo.com/879402345

IB outlined the key points from Care England’s draft submission.
Members expressed broad approval.

Handling requests for a predictable working pattern

GA noted that ACAS has launched a consultation on a draft Code of Practice on handling requests for
a predictable working pattern, which will sit alongside the Workers (Predictable Terms and
Conditions) Act 2023 giving workers a statutory right to request a more predictable working pattern.

GA noted that the development may be more relevant for domiciliary care providers.

HB noted that the legislation has the potential to affect all employers where employees have a lack
of predictability in their work - it does not just relate to the number of hours worked, but also shift
patterns.

HB noted that providers should look at what relevant employment contracts say in relation to the
predictability of working. Noted that the legislation will apply to people on fixed term contracts of 12
months or less, who will be able to request an extension to their contract.

HB noted that the draft Code of Practice does highlight that there is already a statutory right to
request flexible working. With the new legislation, employees will have the right to request both a

more predictable working pattern and flexible working.

GA noted that Care England will continue to flag this to members to gauge the merit in responding
to the consultation.

Rehabilitation of Offenders Act

HB noted that, as of 28 October 2023, rehabilitation periods for adults have reduced, meaning a
reduction in the length of time post-conviction that that conviction remains unspent.

HB noted that convictions leading to more than four years imprisonment for serious violent, sexual
or terrorist offences will never become spent and always be flagged by a DBS check.

HB noted the reduction in the rehabilitation period only affects basic DBS checks. The changes will
not change what will be flagged by an enhanced check, which is required in any role carrying
regulated activity.

HB that employers are not meant to be asking applicants about spent convictions if they are not
applying for a job within the exceptions order.

HB noted that someone cannot bring a discrimination claim based on a spent conviction.
Member expressed concern about employing someone for a housekeeper role, which requires a
basic DBS check, without a full knowledge of possible spent convictions. Explained that these
individuals are left alone in resident bedrooms, sometimes with the resident present. The same

applies to volunteers.

HB noted that members could include a clause in the contract stating that any employee must
disclose any convictions, cautions or police investigations into that individual.

2 Devonshire Square | London EC2M 4UJ | 08450 577 677 www.careengland.org.uk | Registered in England No. 2082270 Registered Charity No. 296103


http://www.careengland.org.uk/

Holiday entitlement for part year and irregular hours workers

GA noted that the Government will legislate to introduce an accrual method to calculate entitlement
at 12.07% of hours worked in a pay period for irregular-hour workers and part-year workers.

HB noted that the regulations will come into force from 1 January 2024, but will apply to holiday
years commencing after 1 April 2024. When the regulations come into effect for your organisation
depends on when your holiday year starts and ends.

HB noted that once holiday entitlement is determined, there are two options for how you pay for
that holiday — you can pay rolled up holiday every time you pay them, or the person gets paid their

holiday when they take their holiday.

AoB

Help inform the direction of Care England

IB noted that Care England has opened a survey where members can anonymously feedback on the
organisation’s outputs and offerings (accessible here), as we look to ensure we continue to meet the
needs and expectations of our members. The first twenty respondents can access a half-price ticket
to the Care England Conference and Exhibition on 14 March 2024 at Church House, Westminster,
London. More details can be found here.

IB noted that, in the same vein, Care England is reviewing the structure and function of the HR
group, looking to move towards a discussion-based forum as opposed to meetings being heavily
update-based. General policy updates would be moved to regular update emails.

Members expressed support for the new HR group structure.

End of meeting.

Care England
16 November 2023

2 Devonshire Square | London EC2M 4UJ | 08450 577 677 www.careengland.org.uk | Registered in England No. 2082270 Registered Charity No. 296103


http://www.careengland.org.uk/
https://careengland.us19.list-manage.com/track/click?u=78fb96d99f1e7fb11a39d1211&id=b3afb972ed&e=094f292fc1
https://careengland.us19.list-manage.com/track/click?u=78fb96d99f1e7fb11a39d1211&id=ea5f7cd9cd&e=094f292fc1

